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UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L15311AS1986PLC002539

Regd. Office: Meherpur, Silchar, Assam – 788 015
Tel: 03842 – 224822/224996, Fax: 03842 – 241539

Email: ufmindustries@rediffmail.com Website: ufmindl.weebly.com

NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Members of UFM Industries
Limited will be held on Friday, 28th September, 2018 at 2:00 P.M. at Registered Office of the Company
at Meherpur, Silchar – 788 015, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial
Year ended 31st March, 2018 and the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Tara Rani Jain (DIN: 00545789), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Revision in remuneration of Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain, Managing Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
and approval of the Board and subject to the provisions of sections 197, 198, 203 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof) read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, approval of
the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the revision in remuneration of Mr. Mahabir
Prasad Jain (DIN: 00498001) for the remaining period of his tenure from 1st July, 2017;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby also
accorded that where in any financial year the Company has no profits or inadequate profits, Managing
Director of the Company be paid remuneration within the overall applicable limit as set out in the
provisions of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
Meherpur, Silchar For UFM Industries Limited
Assam - 788015

Jyoti Jain
Dated:14th August, 2018 Company Secretary
Place: Silchar
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NOTES:

1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the
Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
ONE OR MORE PROXY (IES) TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND
SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Pursuant to the provisions of
Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder, a person can act as a
proxy on behalf of not more than fifty members and holding in aggregate not more than ten
percent of the total Share Capital of the Company. Members holding more than ten percent of the
total Share Capital of the Company may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act as a
proxy for any other Member. The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective, should
be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not later than
48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy Form is annexed to this Notice.
Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by an appropriate
resolution / authority, as applicable.

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend and vote at the
Meeting pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send a certified copy
of the relevant Board Resolution together with specimen signatures of those representative(s)
authorized under the said resolution to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

4. Members holding shares in the physical form are requested to notify changes in address, email id,
bank mandate and bank particulars, if any, under their signatures to M/s. Niche Technologies
Private Limited, D-511, Bagree Market, 71, B.R.B. Basu Road, Kolkata – 700001, the Registrars
and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company, quoting their Folio numbers. Members holding
shares in electronic form may update such information with their respective Depository Participants.

5. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules
made thereunder, Companies can serve Annual Reports and other communications through electronic
mode to those Members who have registered their e-mail address either with the Company or with
the Depository Participant(s). Members who have not registered their e-mail address with the
Company can now register the same by writing to the Registrar of the Company at the following
address:-

Niche Technologies Private Limited,
D-511, Bagree Market,
71, B.R.B. Basu Road,
Kolkata - 700001

Members holding shares in demat form are requested to register their e-mail address with their
Depository Participant(s) only. Members of the Company, who have registered their e-mail address,
are entitled to receive such communication in physical form upon request.

6. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members holding shares in physical form are
advised to file nomination in prescribed Form SH-13 with the RTA. Nomination form can be
downloaded from the Company’s website: www.ufmindl.weebly.com under the section ‘Investor
Information’. In respect of shares held in Electronic/Demat form, members may please contact
their respective Depository Participants.

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number to the Company/ RTA for registration of transfer of shares, for securities market
transactions and off-market/ private transactions involving transfer of shares in physical form. In
this connection, the Transferees of Company’s shares are requested to submit a copy of their PAN
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card along with the Transfer Deed. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to
submit their PAN to the Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company or RTA.

8. Members seeking information regarding financial accounts of the Company are requested to write
to the Company at least 7 (seven) days before the date of meeting so as to enable the management
to keep the information ready.

9. All documents meant for inspection and referred to in the Notice and accompanying Annual Report
are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during office hours between 11:00
A.M to 1:00 P.M on all working days till the date of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and will be
also available for inspection at the Meeting.

10. The Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip are being sent in electronic mode to Members
whose e-mail IDs are registered with the Company or the Depository Participant(s) unless the
Members have registered their request for a hard copy of the same. Physical copy of the Notice of
AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip are being sent to those Members who have not registered
their e-mail IDs with the Company or Depository Participant(s). Members who have received the
Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip in electronic mode are requested to print the
Attendance Slip and submit a duly filled in Attendance Slip at the registration counter to attend the
AGM. Members are requested to bring their admission slip along with the copy of the Annual
Report at the Annual General Meeting.

11. Additional information in respect of the Director seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual
General Meeting pursuant toRegulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard on General Meeting
are furnished as an Annexure and forms a part of the Notice. The Director has furnished the
requisite consents/ declarations for his appointment/re-appointment.

12. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday,
22nd September, 2018 to Friday, 28th September, 2018 (both days inclusive).

13. Members may also note that the Notice of the AGM and the Annual Report will also be available on
the Company’s website, www.ufmindl.weebly.com for their download.

14. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under
Section 170 and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested,
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the
members at the Annual General Meeting.

15. In compliance with the provision of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended and Regulation 44 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is
pleased to provide the facility of remote e-voting to all the Members to enable them to cast their
vote electronically in respect of business to be transacted at the Meeting, for which the Company
has engaged the services of Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL). The Members holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, desiring to vote through electronic mode
may refer to the detailed procedure on e-voting given hereinafter.

16. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the Annual General Meeting
and the Members who have not cast their votes by remote e-voting as on Cut-off date i.e. Friday,
21st September, 2018 shall be able to exercise their right at the Annual General Meeting through
ballot paper. Members who cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the meeting, may attend
the meeting but will not be entitled to cast their vote again.
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17. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on
Friday, 21st September, 2018, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice and
a person who is not a Member as on cut-off date should treat this notice for information purpose
only. The members may cast their votes on electronic voting system from place other than the
venue of the meeting (remote e-voting). Members who have acquired shares after the dispatch of
the Notice of Annual General Meeting and before the cut-off date may approach the Company for
issuance of the User ID and Password for exercising their right to vote by electronic means.

18. The remote e-voting period will commence at 9.00 a.m. on Tuesday, 25th September, 2018 and will
end at 5.00 p.m. on Thursday, 27th September, 2018. The Company has appointed Mr. Sanjay
Kumar Baid, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership no. F5752), to act as the Scrutinizer, for
conducting the scrutiny of the votes cast. The Members desiring to vote through electronic mode
may refer to the detailed procedure on e-voting.

19. The Route map of the venue of Annual General Meeting is annexed at the end of this Notice.

20. PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING

The Company has entered into an arrangement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL) for facilitating e-voting for AGM. The instructions for remote e-voting are as under:

A. In case of Members who receive the Notice in electronic mode:

i) Launch an internet browser and open https:// www.evotingindia.com

ii) Click on Shareholders/Members tab.

iii) Insert ‘User ID’
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the

Company, excluding the special characters.

and enter the image verification as displayed and click ‘Login’.

iv) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
voted on an earlier voting of any Company, then your existing password is to be used.

v) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 
 Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 

Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 
digits of the sequence number in the PAN field. 

 In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable 
number of 0’s before the number after the first two characters of the name in 
CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 
then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field. 

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account with the depository or 
in the company records for your folio in dd/mm/yyyy format 

Bank 
Account 
Number 
(DBD) 

Enter the Bank Account Number as recorded in your demat account with the 
depository or in the company records for your folio. 
 Please Enter the DOB or Bank Account Number in order to Login. 
 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company then 

please enter the member-id / folio number in the Bank Account Number 
details field as mentioned in above instruction (iii). 
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vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

vii) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password
field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company
opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

viii) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Company Name i.e. UFM Industries Limited on which
you choose to vote.on which you choose to vote.

x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies
that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

xii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your
vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
Vote.

xiv) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print”
option on the Voting page.

xv) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the
system.

xvi) Note for Institutional Shareholders & Custodians :

 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are
required to log on to https://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should
be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

 After receiving the login details they have to create a compliance user which should be
created using the admin login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link
the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

 The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval
of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system
for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
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xvii) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under
help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact them at 1800
200 5533.

xviii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android
based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. iPhone and
Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone
Store respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting
on your mobile.

21. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website
www.ufmindl.weebly.com and on the website of CDSL. The same will be communicated to the
stock exchanges viz. BSE Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd., where the shares of the
company are listed.

By Order of the Board
For UFM Industries Limited

Dated: 14th August, 2018 Jyoti Jain
Place: Silchar Company Secretary
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

(Pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No. 3:

The Members of the Company at the 29th Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2015 had
approved the re-appointment of Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain as the Managing Director of the Company
effective from for a period of five years.

Keeping in view, the vast experience of Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain, on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 15th June,
2018 recommended the revision in remuneration to ‘1,50,000/- per month payable to Mr. Mahabir
Prasad Jain effective from 1st July, 2018. All other terms & conditions of his appointment remain
unchanged.

In the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure of the Managing
Director, salary and perquisites subject to the limits stipulated under Schedule V read with section 196
and 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, shall be payable.

Details of Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain as required to be given pursuant to the Listing Regulations and
Secretarial Standards are attached to the Notice.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, except Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain, Mr.
Avishek Jain and Mrs. Tara Rani Jain are in any way concerned or interested financially or otherwise in
the proposed resolution as set out in the Notice.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out in the Notice for the approval of the Members of the
Company

Statement pursuant to provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect
to Item No. 3 of the Notice

I. General Information 

1. Nature of industry Flour Mill 
2. Date of certificate of commencement 

of business 
Not Applicable 

3. In case of new companies, expected 
date of commencement of activities as 
per project approved by financial 
institutions appearing in the 
prospectus 

Not Applicable 

4. Financial performance based on given 
indicators 

For the Financial Year  
(` in Lakhs) 

2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 
Revenues 6,814.84 6,681.92 3,945.62 
Net Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 71.31 95.84 43.97 
Dividend % Nil      Nil Nil 

5. Export performance and net foreign 
exchange collaborations, if any 

Nil 

6. Foreign investments or collaborators if 
any 

Nil 

   
II. Information about the Appointee 

1. Background details Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain has been 
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By Order of the Board
For UFM Industries Limited

Dated: 14th August, 2018 Jyoti Jain
Place: Silchar Company Secretary

1. Background details 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain has been 
appointed as the Managing Director of the 
Company with effect from 1st July, 2015. 
He is a commerce graduate and has done 
Diploma  in Business Management in 
Delhi, Short term Flour making course at 
C.F.T.R.I., Mysore and Short term Flour 
making course at Cansas University, 
U.S.A. and is having 43 years of 
experience in manufacturing and 
distribution of agro products namely Atta, 
Maida, semolina etc. 

2. Past remuneration `12,00,000/- per annum 
3. Job profile and his suitability as 

Director 
He possesses multiple skill and actively 
controls the production, purchase and 
Business Operations.  

4. Remuneration proposed `18,00,000/- per annum for the remaining 
period of his tenure. 

5. Comparative remuneration profile 
with respect to industry, size of the 
company, profile of the position and 
person (in case of expatriates the 
relevant details would be w.r.t. the 
country of his origin) 

The remuneration proposed is on par with 
current industry standards. 

6. Pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the company, or 
relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any 

Besides the remuneration proposed, Mr. 
Mahabir Prasad Jain does not have any 
pecuniary relationship with the Company. 
He is related to Mr. Avishek Jain and Mrs. 
Tara Rani Jain, Promoter Directors of the 
Company 

III. Other Information 
1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits The Company has been consistently 

registering profits in the past Financial 
years but the adjusted net profits are 
inadequate as per section 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for payment of 
managerial remuneration. 

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken 
for improvement 

The Company has initiated certain steps 
such as cost control, borrowing at cheaper 
rates, and improving efficiency etc. 
Though, the prices of raw materials and 
products are influenced by external 
factors, the Company is making all 
possible efforts to improve the margins. 

3. Expected increase in productivity and 
profits in measurable terms 

Barring unforeseen circumstances, the 
Company hopes to increase the revenue 
and profits by improved margins in 
current year 
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ANNEXURE TO ITEM NO. 2 and 3 OF THE NOTICE

Details of Director seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard on General Meeting]

Name of the Director 
DIN 
Age (Years) 
Nationality 
Qualification 

Experience (years) 
Expertise in special 
functional Area 
Date of First Appointment on 
the Board of the Company 
Terms & condition of                        
re-appointment   
Details of remuneration 
sought to be paid and 
remuneration last drawn (`) 

Shareholding in the Company  
[Equity share of face value ` 
10/-  each ]  
Relationship between the 
Directors inter se and other 
Key Managerial Person 
No. of Board Meetings 
attended during the year 
List of Directorship held in 
other Companies (excluding 
Foreign Company) 

Membership/ Chairmanships 
of Committees of Boards of 
other Companies. (only Audit 
Committee and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee have 
been considered )  
 

Mrs. Tara Rani Jain Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain 
00545789 00498001 
64 years 68 years 
Indian Indian 
Undergraduate Commerce Graduate, Diploma in 

Business Management 
25 43 
Administration  Overall Business operations 

23/03/2015 04/06/1986 

                       Director; 
Liable to retire by rotation 

Managing Director; 
Not Liable to retire by rotation 

NIL Sought to be paid: `1,50,000/- per 
month 
Remuneration last drawn: 
`1,00,000/- per month 

 3,34,108 3,77,415 

Related to Mr. Mahabir 
Prasad Jain (Husband) and 
Mr. Avishek Jain (son) 

Related to Mrs. Tara Rani Jain (wife) 
and Mr. Avishek Jain (son) 

5 6 

1. Lalit Poly Weave LLP 
2. Arihant Sugar Limited 
3. Radio Supply Stores 

(Cinema) Pvt Ltd 
4. Shri Lalit Cold Storage 

Private Limited 

1. Arihant Sugar Limited 
2. Lalit Poly Weave LLP 
3. Radio Supply Stores (Cinema) 

Pvt Ltd 
4. Sethi Oil Field & Services Private 

limited 
5. Nidhi Creative Infrastructure 

Private limited 
6. Shri Lalit Cold Storage Private 

Limited 
7. Shri Lalit Realcon Private Limited 
8. Namokar Marketing Limited 
9. Harak Chand Investment Limited 
10. Goldstone Cements Limited 

Nil Nil 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANALYSIS

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 32nd Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018 and the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on
that date.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The highlights of the financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March,
2018 as compared to the previous financial year are as under:-

                (` in Lakhs)

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, vide its notification dated February 16, 2015, notified the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) applicable to certain classes of Companies. Ind AS has replaced the
existing Indian GAAP prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. For the Company, Ind AS is applicable from April 1, 2017, with a
transition date of April 1, 2016.

The reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS have been
provided in the notes to accounts.

INDIAN ECONOMY AND INDUSTRY AT A GLANCE

The past Financial years have been marked with some major economic reforms like implementation of
Goods and Services Tax (GST) and demonetization, but the Indian economy continued to grow well in
the context of declining growth across the major global economies.  After registering GDP growth of
over 7 per cent for the third year in succession in 2016-17, the Indian economy is headed for somewhat
slower growth, estimated to be 6.5 per cent in 2017- 18. It was largely because of pre-GST jitters and
lingering effects of demonetization. Even with the lower growth for 2017-18, the average GDP growth
for the period from 2014-15 to 2017-18 was 7.3 per cent, which is the highest among the major
economies of the world.

The Indian food industry is poised for huge growth, increasing its contribution to world food trade every
year. In India, the food sector has emerged as a high-growth and high-profit sector due to its immense
potential for value addition. A steadily improving outlook for business in India means that the Food

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17 

Net Sales / Income 6849.36 6778.37 
Profit Before Depreciation, Interest, exceptional items & 
Tax 

163.28 197.47 

Less: Depreciation 27.44 25.44 
Less: Interest and Finance Charges 55.74 37.45 
Less: Exceptional Items 0.30 - 
Profit Before Tax 79.80 134.58 
Less: Tax Expenses:   
-Current Tax 19.04 18.33 
-Income Tax for earlier years 1.77 - 

-Deferred Tax (12.32) 20.41 

Profit after Tax 71.31 95.84 
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industry as well is recovering from a sluggish phase into a phase of more steady and sustained growth.
Demand for processed food is robust and it is growing handsomely.

The agriculture sector is the backbone of our Indian economy which provides the basic ingredients to
mankind and providing raw material for rapid industrialization sector development. During 2017-18
crop year, food grain production is estimated at 279.51 million tonnes, and wheat production in the
country is estimated at 111.52 MT and 98.61 MT, respectively in the same period.

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS

The Indian food industry is still at a nascent stage and we expect it to record solid growth rates for
several years to come. This represents a significant opportunity for your Company. With continued
economic progress we expect to see strong robust growth in the Food Industry and we believe we are
well poised to capture our share of this growth in a profitable manner. On the product side we see the
emergence of consumers seeking both healthy and premium indulgence options and by ensuring that
our portfolio includes offerings which address these consumers we are well placed to seize this opportunity.
At the same time there will also still exists a huge opportunity in consumption amongst the emerging
Indian Middle Class at a base consumption level seeking a broader variety in their existing food regimen
in an affordable manner.

The Company has evolved a risk management framework to identify, assess and mitigate the key risk
factors of the business. The Board of the Company is kept informed about the risk management of the
Company.

PERFORMANCE AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

During the year under review, your Company manufactured 31,305.29 MT of flour (Atta, Maida, Suji,
Bran, and Wheat) as against 31263.51 MT in previous Financial Year. Similarly, your Company has been
able to achieve sales volume of 31252.69 MT of flour (Atta, Maida, Suji, Bran, and Wheat) as against
30967.20 MT in previous Financial Year

PRODUCTION AND COST DEVELOPMENTS

During the year under review, your company has been pursing with bulk consumers like biscuit, noodles
and bakery segments to make contract agreements. However, we are hopeful of positive result in the
next financial year. This will enable us to ramp up production. Logistics is becoming a major cost factor
and we have to constantly change our strategy to minimize this cost.

OUTLOOK

In the coming years, India is expected to achieve the ambitious goal of doubling farm income.  Increased
investment activities such as irrigation facilities, warehousing and cold storage in agricultural
infrastructure are likely to generate better momentum. Furthermore, the growing use of genetically
modified crops will likely improve the yield for Indian farmers. India is expected to be self-sufficient in
pulses in the coming few years due to concerted efforts of scientists to get early-maturing varieties of
pulses and the increase in minimum support price.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Capital as on March 31, 2018 was Rs. 5,93,26,000/-. During the year under review,
the Company has neither issued any shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock options or
sweat equity shares.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of requirement of section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of the Annual
return in form MGT-9 is annexed herewith and marked Annexure-1.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year, six (6) Board Meetings and five (5) Audit Committee meetings were convened and
held. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013. The details of the Board Meeting are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the year under review, meeting of Independent Directors was held on 9th February, 2018 wherein
the performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole was reviewed. The
Independent Directors at their meeting also, inter alia, assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of
flow of information between the Company management and the Board of Directors of the Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The composition and terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee have been furnished in the Corporate Governance
Report forming part of this Annual Report. There has been no instance where the Board has not accepted
the recommendations of the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has formed a Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism as required under Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. A Vigil (Whistle Blower) mechanism provides a channel to the employees and Directors to report
to the management concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
Codes of conduct or policy. The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of
employees and Directors to avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The said policy may be referred toat the Company’s
website at the web link: http://ufmindl.weebly.com/uploads/8/7/1/1/8711000/whistle_blower_policy.pdf

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

The Board has framed a Remuneration Policy for selection, appointment and remuneration of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Employees. The remuneration policy aims to enable
the company to attract, retain and motivate highly qualified members for the Board and at other
executive levels. The remuneration policy seeks to enable the Company to provide a well-balanced and
performance-related compensation package, taking into account shareholders’ interests, industry
standards and relevant Indian corporate regulations. The details on the same are given in the Corporate
Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to requirement of Section 134 (3) (c) read with section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Directors hereby confirm and state that:

• In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed
along with the proper explanation relating to material departures, if any.
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• The Directors have selected such accounting policies and have applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018 and of the profit of the Company for
the year under review.

• The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

• The Directors have prepared the annual accounts ongoing concern basis.

• The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

• The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid
down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Deepak Ladia and Mr. Poonam Chand
Deewani are Independent Directors on the Board of your Company. In the opinion of the Board and as
confirmed by these Directors, they fulfil the conditions specified in section 149 of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder about their status as Independent Director of the Company.

FAMILIARIZATION  PROGRAMME  UNDER  TAKEN  FOR  INDEPENDENT  DIRECTORS

In order to enable the Independent Directors to perform their duties optimally, the Board has devised
a familiarization programme for the Independent Directors to familiarise them with the Company, their
roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates,
business model of the Company, etc. They are periodically updated about the development which takes
place in the Company. The Independent Directors have been issued Letter of Appointment setting out
in detail, the terms of appointment, duties, responsibilities and commitments etc. The familiarization
program is available on the Company’s website under the weblink: http://ufmindl.weebly.com/uploads/
8/7/1/1/8711000/familiarization_programme.pdf

AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT

M/s. P. A. Agarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration no. 327316E), Statutory Auditors of
the Company, have been appointed by the members at the Thirty First Annual General Meeting and
shall hold office for a period of 5 years from the date of such meeting held on 26th September, 2017.

The notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and, therefore, do not
call for any further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Mr. Sanjay Kumar
Baid, a Company Secretary in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial
Audit Report is annexed herewith marked Annexure-2. The report is self-explanatory and do not call
for any further comments.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, your company has not given any loan or guarantee to any person falling
under ambit of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Details of Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions are entered on arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business and
are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no materially
significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large. Accordingly, no transactions are being reported in Form AOC-2 in terms of Section
134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. However, the details of the
transactions with the Related Party are provided in the Company’s financial statements in accordance
with the Accounting Standards.

All Related Party Transactions are presented to the Audit Committee and the Board. Omnibus approval
has been obtained for the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. A statement of all
related party transactions is presented before the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis, specifying the
nature, value and terms and conditions of the transactions.

A policy on ‘Related Party Transactions’ has been devised by the Company which may be referred to at
the Company’s website at the web link http://ufmindl.weebly.com/uploads/8/7/1/1/8711000/
related_party_policy.pdf

RESERVES

During the year under review no amount was transferred to reserves.

DIVIDEND

In order to conserve resources for future operations, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for
the Financial Year 207-18.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo as stipulated in section 134 (3) (m) of the Act and rules framed there under is mentioned below:

(A) Steps taken toward Conservation of energy:

 We have replaced several light fittings with LED based lighting. This will reduce lighting cost
significantly.

 We are taking good care of Motors and compressors so that they are never over heated with high
current.

 Damaged Power factor capacitors have been replaced

(B) Steps taken toward Technical Absorption:

 We have invited expert millers and company representative from BUHLER India, our machinery
supplier to improve our systems. We have significantly improved our lab processes and systems.
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Hygiene in the production facility has been ramped up. Preventive maintenance has significantly
reduced sudden breakdown causing production loss.

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo

During the period under review, there was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board has
carried out the annual evaluation of its own performance, its Committees and Directors individually. A
structured questionnaire was prepared after circulating the draft forms, covering various aspects of the
Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board
culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance.

A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the Directors,
covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board
and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and
governance.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was completed. The performance evaluation
of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The
Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

The Directors expressed their satisfaction over the evaluation process and results thereof.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Avishek Jain will retire by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment. In view of his considerable experience, your Directors recommend his re-
appointment as Director of the company.

HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE

The Company does not have any Holding, Subsidiary, Associate and Joint Venture.

DEPOSITS

During the year under report, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public or from any of
the Directors of the Company or their relatives falling under ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act,
2013.

CHANGES IMPACTING GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS

During the year under review, there have been no material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts
impacting materially the going concern status or future operations of the Company.

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
during the period under review.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

Internal Control Systems are designed to ensure the reliability of financial and other record and
accountability of executive action to the management’s authorization. The Statutory Auditors have
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evaluated the system of internal controls of the Company and have reported that the same are adequate
and commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business.

The internal control systems are reviewed by the top Management and by the Audit Committee of
the Board and proper follow up action ensured wherever required.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material
weakness in the design or operations were observed.

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION AND PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required under Section 197 (12) read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 along with, a statement containing particulars
of employees as required under Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) and (3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith
and marked Annexure- 3 and forms part of this report.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The Company has adopted a ‘Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment’ as per the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“Sexual Harassment Act”).
We affirm that adequate access has been provided to any complainants who wish to register a complaint
under the policy. No complaint was received during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the corporate governance requirements as stipulated under the Listing
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements formulated by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).
A separate section on corporate governance, along with a certificate from the auditors confirming the
compliance, is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) /CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

As required under Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements formulated
by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), the CEO/CFO certification has been submitted to the
Board and a copy thereof is contained in this Annual Report.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT & INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company recognizes the need for continuous growth and development of its employees in order to
provide greater job satisfaction and also to equip them to meet growing organizational challenges.

During the year under review, there has not been any material change in human resources, industrial
relations and number of people employed.

GREEN INITIATIVES IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has permitted Companies to send copies of Annual report, Notices, etc.,
electronically to the email IDs of shareholders. Your Company has arranged to send the soft copies of
these documents to the registered email IDs of the shareholders, wherever applicable. In case, any
shareholder would like to receive physical copies of these documents, the same shall be forwarded
upon receipt of written request in this respect.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this report describing the Company’s objectives, expectations or predictions, may be
forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results may
differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Important factors that could influence the
Company’s operations include global and domestic demand and supply conditions affecting selling
prices of finished goods, input availability and prices, changes in Government regulations, tax laws,
economic developments within the country and other incidental factors. The Company assumes no
responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward-looking statements, on the basis, of any
subsequent developments, events or information.
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Your Directors take this opportunity to express their deep sense of gratitude to the Banks, Central and
State Governments and their departments and the Local Authorities, Customers, Vendors, Business
partners/associates and Stock Exchanges for their continued guidance and support.

Your Directors would also like to place on record their sincere appreciation for the commitment, dedication
and hard work put in by every member of the Company and recognize their contribution towards
Company’s achievements. Your Directors express their gratitude to the shareholders of the Company
for reposing their confidence and trust in the Management of the Company.

Place:  Silchar
Date: 15th June, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mahabir Prasad Jain Avishek Jain
Managing Director Director and CFO
DIN: 00498001 DIN: 01383018
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Annexure - 1

FORM NO. MGT - 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31st March, 2018

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014]

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

1

2

Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of
shares
held

Applicable
Section

CIN/GLNName and address of the CompanySl. 
No.

I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

Whether listed company

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Address of the Registered office  & 
contact details

Name, Address & contact details of the 
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

L15311AS1986PLC002539

U F M Industries Limited

Company limited by Shares/ Non - Govt. Company

CIN

Registration Date

Name of the Company

4th June, 1986

Name and Description of main products / services

Wheat Flour milling

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company are stated)

Meherpur, Silchar, Assam - 788015
Phone No. : (03842) 224822 / 224996
Fax: (03842) 241539
Email: ufm.investorgrievances@gmail.com  ; 
ufmindustries@rediffmail.com

Yes

Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
D-511, Bagree Market, 71, B.R.B. Basu Road,
Kolkata – 700001
Ph. : 22357270 / 7271 / 3070 Fax : 91-033-22156823
Email : nicheteehpl@nicheteehpl.com

NIC Code of 
the Product/ 

service

%  to total turnover 
of the company

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

Sl. 
No.

NIL

10611 99.88

III.     PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Email : nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com
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(Amt. `/Lacs)

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sl. No. Total Amount

(`/Lac)

-                    

2 -                    

3 -                    

-                    

-                    

5 -                    

1,200,000.00     

(b) Value of perquisites under section 17(2) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

Gross salary

-                             

** Trade Deposits have not been included

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
of the Income- tax Act, 1961

Others, please specify

4

Commission

-  as % of profit

-  others, specify

-                    

1,200,000.00     

1

Name of MD/WTD/ 
Manager

Particulars of Remuneration

Name

Designation

Ceiling as per the Act

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Net Change (88.88)                 -           -               (88.88)                        

* Addition -                     -           -               -                             

* Reduction 88.88                  -           -               88.88                          

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Particulars Secured Loans 
excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits** Total Indebtedness

Total (i+ii+iii) 625.21               -           -              625.21                       

ii)  Interest due but not paid -                     -           -               -                             

iii)  Interest accrued but not 
due

-                     -           -               

625.21                -           -               

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i)   Principal Amount

i) Principal Amount 536.33                -           

Total (i+ii+iii) 536.33               -           -              536.33                       

ii) Interest due but not paid -                     -               -                             

iii) Interest accrued but not 
due

-           -               -                             

-               536.33                        

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

625.21                        

 As per schedule V (Inadequate profit) of the 
Companies Act, 2013  

Mahabir Prasad Jain

Managing Director

1,200,000.00                   

1,200,000.00                   

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
Total (A)

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity
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B. Remuneration to other Directors

Sl. No. Total Amount

(`/Lac)

-                    

-                    

-                    

-                    

-                    

-                    

-                    

-                    

-                    

1,200,000.00     

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial 
Remuneration

-                                                   

-                                                   

-                                                   
-                                                   

 As per schedule V (Inadequate profit) 
of the Companies Act, 2013  

Total (2)

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

-                                                   

Name of Directors

2 Other Non-Executive 
Directors

Fee for attending board/ 
committee meetings

Others, remuneration paid in 
professional capacity

Others, please specify

1 Independent Directors

Fee for attending board/ 
committee meetings

Commission

Total (1)

Commission

Not Applicable

-                                                   

-                                                   

-                                                   

-                                                   
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
Sl. No. Total Amount

(`/Lac)

Gross salary

-                    

2 -                    

3 -                    
Commission

-  as % of profit -                    
-  others, specify -                    

5 Others, please specify -                    
Total 840,000.00      

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties/Punishments/Compounding of offences for breach of any provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 against the Company or its Directors or other Officer in default during the year.

Type Section 
of the 

Compan
ies Act

Brief 
Description

Details of 
Penalty / 

Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal made, if any 
(give Details)

4

840,000.00        

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) of the
Income- tax Act, 1961

-                    

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

-                            

-                            

-                            

-                            

1

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

Name

Designation

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Avishek Jain Jyoti Jain

Chief Financial Officer

600,000.00                 

Name of Key Managerial Personnel

600,000.00               240,000.00           

-                            

-                            

-                            

Company Secretary

240,000.00             
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Annexure-2

Form No. MR-3
SECRETERIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
UFM Industries Ltd.
Meherpur, Silchar-788015
Assam.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by UFM Industries Limited (hereinafter called the company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report
that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31/
03/2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

1. I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by UFM Industries Limited for the financial year ended on 31/03/2018 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the company:-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;
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(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(i) The company has complied with the requirements under the Equity Listing Agreements
entered into with BSE limited and National Stock Exchange Of India Limited; and

(j) The Memorandum and Article of Association.

2. I further report that the Company has, in my opinion, complied with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and the Rules made under that Act, the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made under that Act and the provisions of the Companies
(Amendment) Act, 2017 as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company, with regard to:

a) Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein;

b) Closure of the Register of Members.

c) Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies
and the Central Government;

d) Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of Companies;

e) Notice of Board meetings and Committee meetings of Directors;

f) The meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of resolutions by
circulation;

g) The 31st Annual General Meeting held on 26th September, 2017;

h) Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its Committee meetings;

i) Approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, the Committees of Directors and the
government authorities, wherever required;

j) Constitution of the Board of Directors / Committee(s) of Directors, appointment, retirement
and reappointment of Directors including the Managing Director and Whole time Directors;

k) Payment of remuneration to Directors including the Managing Director and Whole-time Directors,

l) Appointment and remuneration of Auditors and Secretarial Auditors;

m) Transfers and transmissions of the Company’s shares and issue and dispatch of duplicate
certificates of shares;

n) Declaration and payment of dividends;

o) Transfer of certain amounts as required under the Act to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund and uploading of details of unpaid and unclaimed dividends on the websites of the
Company and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs;

p) Borrowings and registration, modification and satisfaction of charges wherever applicable;

q) Investment of the Company’s funds including investments and loans to others;
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r) Form of balance sheet as prescribed under Part l, form of statement of profit and loss as
prescribed under Part II and General Instructions for preparation of the same as prescribed in
Schedule VI to the Act;

s) Directors’ report;

t) Contracts, common seal, registered office and publication of name of the Company; and

u) Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made under the Act.

3. I further report that:

 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.

 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

 Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

 The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act;

 The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of
appointment, their being independent and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct &
Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel.

4. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
and the Rules made under that Act, with regard to maintenance of minimum public shareholding.

5. The Company has complied with the provisions of the FEMA, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations
made under that Act to the extent applicable.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

Place: Guwahati
Date:  15/06/2018

Name: Sanjay Kumar Baid
                                                                                                   FCS No. 5752
                                                                                                    C P No.:  4062
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PARTICULARS OF MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

Statement pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the
employees and percentage increase in remuneration of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company for the financial year:

(ii) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year:
10%

(iii) The number of permanent employees on the roll of the Company : 81

(iv) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

The average percentile increase in the salaries of non-managerial employees in the Financial Year
2017-18was 7% while the average percentile increase in the Managerial remuneration was NIL

(v) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Date : 15th June, 2018 Mahabir Prasad Jain

Place: Silchar Chairman

DIN: 00498001

Name of Directors & Key 
Managerial Personnel 

Designation 
Percentage 
Increase in 

Remuneration  

Ratio to 
median 

remuneration  

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain Managing Director Nil 18.73:1 

Mr. Avishek Jain Non-Executive Director NA NA 

Mrs. Tara Rani Jain Non-Executive Director NA NA 

Mr. Deepak Ladia Independent Director NA NA 

Mr. Poonam Chand Deewani Independent Director NA NA 

Mr. Avishek Jain Chief Financial Officer  Nil - 

Mrs. Jyoti Jain Company Secretary  Nil - 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR 2017-18

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance:

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance:

Your company has been practicing good Corporate Governance over the years upholding its true traditions
and values. The company has not only put in place the system for compliance or regulatory requirement
but also the system for customer satisfaction and meeting the expectations of its share holders, employee
and the society. It is the philosophy of the company to continue to have accountability, transparency
and integrity in all its business transactions and practices.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition:

The Board of Directors has been vested with requisite powers, authorities and duty. The Board plays an
imperative role in the management, strategic directions and performance of the Company. As on the
date of this report, the Board consists of five Directors out of which two are Independent Directors.

None of the Directors is a member of the Board of more than twenty Companies or a Member of more
than ten Board-level Committees or a Chairman of more than five such Committees.

Mr. Avishek Jain is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

The Composition is as provided below:

As on 31st March 2018, the details of each member of the Board along with the number of Directorship(s)
/ Committee Membership(s) are provided herein below:

* Includes Private Companies which are subsidiaries of Public Limited Companies, Unlimited Liability Companies,
Companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013, Membership of Managing Committees of
Chambers of Commerce/Professional Bodies but excludes Foreign Companies.

** Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee have been considered as per SEBI Regulations.

Name of the Director Designation Category 
Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain Managing Director Promoter - Executive 
Mr. Avishek Jain Director & CFO Executive 
Mrs. Tara Rani Jain Director Non-Executive 
Mr. Deepak Ladia Director Independent 
Mr. Poonam Chand Deewani  Director Independent 

 

Name of the Director 
Number of Directorship of 

Public Limited Companies * 

Number of Membership 
including Chairmanship of 

Board Committee(s) ** 

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain 6 - 

Mr. Avishek Jain 3 - 

Mrs. Tara Rani Jain 3 2 

Mr. Deepak Ladia 1 2 (2 as Chairman) 

Mr. Poonam Chand Deewani  3 2 
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Board Meetings and Procedures

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the policies and strategies with respect
to the business of the Company apart from normal business. The Board generally meets at least once
in every quarter to review the Quarterly results. Additional meetings are held as and when necessary.

All the meetings are scheduled well in advance and notices are sent to all the Directors at their address
registered with the Company. The agenda of the meeting are backed by necessary supporting information
and documents to enable the Board to take informed decisions. Agenda also includes minutes of the
meetings of all the Board Committees for the information of the Board. Additional agenda items in the
form of “Other Business” are included with the permission of the Chairman. Drafts minutes of the
proceedings of the Board/Committee Meetings are circulated in advance and comments, if any, received
from the Directors are incorporated in the minutes in consultation with the Chairman. The Board
periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company. Information about major
events/items is placed before the Board and approval of the Board is taken on all such matters wherever
such approval is required. Senior executives of the Company are invited as and when required to
provide additional inputs or clarifications required on agenda items being discussed in the Board Meeting.

Number and dates of Board Meetings held during the year

Six (6) Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2017 - 18 and the gap between two
meetings did not exceed four months. The Meetings were held on 10th May 2017, 29th May 2017,
12th August 2017, 25th August 2017, 25th October 2017 and 9th February 2018. The Attendance at
the Board Meetings during the financial year 2017-18 and at the previous Annual General Meeting is as
under:

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

As stipulated by the Code for Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations, separate meetings of the Independent Directors of the Company were held on 9th February
2018, to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. The
Independent Directors also reviewed the quality, content and timeliness of the flow of information
between the Management and the Board and Committees, which is necessary to effectively and reasonably
perform and discharge their duties.

Induction and Familiarization Program for Directors:

As per the Listing Regulations, the Company shall provide suitable training to the Directors to familiarize
them with the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates etc.

The members of the Board of Directors are well acquainted with the industry and are provided necessary
reports, documents and other presentations including interactive session with CEO and other heads of
the Company. Efforts are made to familiarize the Directors about their roles, rights, and responsibilities.
The Directors are regularly updated on the changes in policies, laws and regulations and other
developments in the business. The details of the Director’s induction and familiarization are available
on the Company’s website at http://ufmindl.weebly.com/uploads/8/7/1/1/8711000/
familiarization_programme.pdf

Name of Director 
No. of Board 

Meeting Attended 
Last AGM 
Attended 

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain 6 Yes 

Mr. Avishek Jain 6 Yes 

Mrs. Tara Rani Jain 5 Yes 

Mr. Deepak Ladia 5 No 

Mr. Poonam Chand Deewani  6 Yes 
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Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Regulations, the Board has carried out the annual
performance evaluation of its own performance, as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees.
A structured questionnaire for evaluation was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received
from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the
composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific
duties, obligations and governance. The results of the Evaluation were shared with the Board, Chairman
of respective Committees and individual Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfaction over the
evaluation process

Resume of Directors proposed to be re-appointed:

The brief resume of Directors retiring by rotation and seeking re-appointment, if any, is appended in
the notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Currently, the Board has three Committees: Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The terms of reference of these Committees are determined
by the Board and subject to be reviewed from time to time. Meetings of each of these Committees are
convened by the respective Chairman of the Committee, who also informs the Board about the summary
of discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The Minutes of the Committee Meetings are sent to all
members of Committee individually and tabled at the Board Meetings.

Audit Committee:

All the members of the Audit Committee are Non-Executive Directors with majority Independent Directors
including Chairman. The Committee is governed by a Charter which is in line with the regulatory
requirements mandated by the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Regulations.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are broadly inter alia as follows:

i. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

ii. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;

iii. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

iv. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon
before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board’s Report

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report

v. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
board for approval;
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vi. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses /application of funds raised through an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes
other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by
the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

vii. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

viii. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

ix. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

x. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

xi. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

xii. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of
the internal control systems;

xiii. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

xiv. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

xv. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature
and reporting the matter to the board;

xvi. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit, audit observations as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

xvii. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

xviii. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

xix. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading
the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience
and background, etc. of the candidate;

Composition, number of Meetings and Attendance:

The Audit Committee met 5 (five) times during the Financial year 2017-18. The Audit Committee’s
composition meets the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Regulations.
The Members of the Audit Committee possess financial/ accounting expertise/ exposure. The meetings
were held on 10th May 2017, 29th May 2017, 12th August 2017, 25th October 2017 and 9th February
2018. All the members of the Committee attended the meeting.

The Audit Committee comprises of the following members:

Audit Committee meetings are attended by the Chief Finance Officer of the Company and Representatives
of Statutory Auditors. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

Name Category Designation 

Mr. Deepak Ladia Non-Executive, Independent Chairman 

Mr. Poonam Chand Deewani  Non- Executive, Independent Member 

Mrs. Tara Rani Jain Non-Executive, Non – 
Independent 

Member 
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee determines on behalf of the Board and shareholders as
per agreed terms of reference, the Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for Executive
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. The Chairman of the Committee is an
Independent Director and the Members of the Committee are Non - Executive Directors.

The broad terms of reference of the Committee inter alia are as follows:
i. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of

a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other employees;

ii. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Directors
iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity;
iv. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal;

v. Recommending/reviewing remuneration of the Managing Director(s) and Whole-time Director(s)
based on their performance and defined assessment criteria

Remuneration Policy:

The Company has formulated a remuneration policy with a focus on attracting talent and rewarding
performance based on review of achievements. The remuneration to be paid to the Executive Directors,
if any, shall be recommended by the Remuneration Committee based on the Net Profits of the Company
which are then approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and the Shareholders of the Company
in their respective meetings. The remuneration to be paid to the Executive Directors shall be determined
and based on the industry benchmark, performance of the Company to the industry performance.
Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for their performance expertise in their individual
capacity as individual Professionals/Business Executives.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as at 31st March, 2018 is as under:

Meetings and Attendance:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met on 10th May, 2017 during the financial year 2017-
18. All the members of the Committee attended the meeting.

Remuneration of Directors:

The details of remuneration paid to Directors for the Financial Year 2017-18 are provided below:

Name of the Member Category Designation 

Mr. Deepak Ladia Non-Executive, Independent Chairman 

Mr. Poonam Chand Deewani  Non- Executive, Independent Member 

Mrs. Tara Rani Jain Non-Executive, Non – 
Independent 

Member 

 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the Director Designation Salary (`) Sitting 
Fees 
(`) 

No. of 
shares held 
as on date 

1 Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain Executive Director 12,00,000 Nil 3,77,415 
2 Mr. Avishek Jain Director & CFO 6,00,000 Nil 49,000 
3 Mrs. Tara Rani Jain Director Nil Nil 3,34,108 
4 Mr. Deepak Ladia Independent Director Nil Nil Nil 
5 Mr. Poonam Chand 

Deewani  
Independent Director Nil Nil Nil 
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None of the Directors of the Company/Key Managerial Personnel had any pecuniary relationship with
the Company during the year.

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Regulations,
the Board has constituted “Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee”.

The Committee’s responsibility is to oversee Share Transfers and addressing to and redressal of
shareholders’ grievances etc. The Committee also evaluates performance and service standards of the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Committee includes:
i. Review the process and mechanism of redressal of investor grievance and suggest measures of

improving the system of redressal of investor grievances.
ii. Consider and approve all requests from shareholders regarding transfer & transmission of shares,

issue of duplicate share certificate, consolidation of shares, demat, remat, split & folio consolidation
etc.

iii. Review and resolve the pending investors complaints, if any, relating to transfer of shares, non-
receipt of share certificate(s), non-receipt of interest dividend warrants, non-receipt of annual
report and any other grievance/complaints with Company or any officer of the Company arising
out in discharge of his duties.

iv. Oversee the performance of the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and also review and take note of
complaints directly received and resolve them.

During the Financial Year 2017-18, no meeting of Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held.

The Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is given below:

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

Status of Pending Complaints:

The Company has not received any Complaints during the Financial Year 2017-18. There were no
complaints pending at the beginning and at the end of the Financial Year. However, during the year
under review letters on various matters were received and were duly addressed.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy. This mechanism provides
a tool in the hands of Employees and Directors to report to the Management, concerns about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Codes of conduct or policy. The mechanism
provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors to avail of the
mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional
cases.

Name of the Member Category Designation 

Mr. Deepak Ladia Non-Executive, Independent Chairman 

Mr. Poonam Chand Deewani  Non- Executive, Independent Member 

Mrs. Tara Rani Jain Non-Executive, Non – Independent Member 
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

Particulars of last three Annual General Meetings:

Financial 
Year  

AGM Date Venue Time Matter 

2014-15 29th  30.09.2015 Meherpur, Silchar, 
Assam - 788015 

02:00 
P.M. 

Re-appointment of Mr. 
Mahabir Prasad Jain as 
Managing Director 

2015-16 30th  28.09.2016 Meherpur, Silchar, 
Assam - 788015 

02:00 
P.M. 

NIL 

2016-17 31st   26.09.2017 Meherpur, Silchar, 
Assam - 788015 

02:00 
P.M. 

NIL 

 During the year under review, no resolution has been passed through the exercise of Postal Ballot and
no Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders was held during the year.

DISCLOSURES:

 No materially significant related party transactions took place between the Company and its associates,
Promoters, Directors or the Management and their relatives which have a bearing on interests of the
Company at large. Other Related Party transactions as per requirements of Accounting Standard 18
have been reported in Notes to Accounts annexed to the financial statements. The policy on related
party transaction has been placed on the Company’s website at http://ufmindl.weebly.com/uploads/
8/7/1/1/8711000/related_party_policy.pdf

 The Company has a well-defined risk management framework and the Board is kept informed about
the risk assessment and minimization procedures. The risk policy provides for identification of risk,
its assessments and procedures to minimize risk. The risk management policy is reviewed periodically
to ensure that the executive management controls the risk as per decided policy.

 The Company’s policy on Vigil mechanism is placed on the Company’s website at http://
ufmindl.weebly.com/uploads/8/7/1/1/8711000/whistle_blower_policy.pdf. We hereby affirm that
no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

 The Financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards
stipulated under the Companies Act.

 During the year under review, the Company has not raised any money through public issue.

CODE OF CONDUCT

In pursuance of the SEBI Regulations, the Board has approved the ‘Code of Conduct for Board of
Directors and Senior Management’ and same has been posted on the Company’s website
www.ufmindl.weebly.com. The Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance
with the provisions of above Code of Conduct. The declaration by the Managing Director to this effect is
also attached to this Report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company’s quarterly financial results, after their approval by the Board of Directors, are promptly
issued to all the Stock Exchanges with whom the Company has listing arrangements. These financial
results, in the prescribed format, as per SEBI Regulations, are published in prominent English and
Bengali (Regional language) newspapers usually in ‘The Financial Express’ and ‘Dainik Prantojyoti’. The
quarterly financial results and official news are also posted on the website of the Company –
www.ufmindl.weebly.com.
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The audited financial statements form a part of the Annual Report which is sent to the Members well in
advance of the Annual General Meeting. The Annual Report of the Company, the quarterly / half yearly
and the annual results of the Company are also placed on the Company’s website:
www.ufmindl.weebly.com and can be downloaded.

All periodical compliance filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report, media releases,
among others are filed electronically on BSE’s Listing Centre which is web-based application for corporate.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A Management Discussion and Analysis Report, forms a part of the Directors’ Report.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Annual General Meeting

Date and Time 28th September, 2018 at 02:00 P.M. 
Venue Meherpur, Silchar, Assam – 788 015 
Dates of Book Closure Saturday, 22nd September, 2018 

to Friday, 28th September, 2018 (both days inclusive) 
 Financial Calendar (for the year 2018 - 19)

The Company follows financial year starting from 1st of April of the financial year and ending on 31st

March of the following year.

Proposed date for approval of financial results

First Quarter ended 30th June, 2018 Within 45 days from the end of quarter 

Second Quarter ended 30th September, 2018 Within 45 days from the end of quarter 

Third Quarter ended 31st December, 2018 Within 45 days from the end of quarter 

Fourth/Last Quarter ended 31st March, 2019 Within 60 days from the end of quarter 
 

Listing on Stock Exchanges
The Shares of the Company are presently listed on the following Stock Exchanges:-

a) The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd.
7, Lyons Range, Kolkata- 700001

b) BSE Ltd. (BSE)
PhirozeJeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Fort,
Mumbai – 400 001

The Company has paid listing fees to BSE for the year 2018-19.

Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the year 2017-18 has been paid by the Company to CDSL. Bills for the
year 2018-19 has been received and paid by the Company to CDSL.

Stock Code

Name of the Exchange  Stock Code 

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd 031176 

BSE Limited  531610 
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ISIN Allotted to the Company by the Depositories
The Company has signed Depository agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited. The
ISIN allotted to the Company is INE832E01010.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN)
L15311AS1986PLC002539

Market Information
The shares of the Company were not traded at Calcutta Stock Exchange and BSE Limited during the
year.

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents
Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
D-511, Bagree Market,
71, B.R.B. Basu Road,
Kolkata – 700001
Ph.: 22357270 / 7271 / 3070
Fax: 91-033-22156823
Email: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com

Share Transfer System
Requests for transfer of shares can be lodged either at the office of the Company or at the office of the
Registrar. The transfers are normally processed within a maximum period of 15 days from the receipt of
documents, complete in all respect.

Transfer of Shares in dematerialized form is duly processed by CDSL in electronic form through the
Depository participants.  Dematerialisation is required to be done within a period of 15 days from the
date of lodgment of Dematerilaisation request, complete in all respect, with the Depository Participant
of the Shareholder.

Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2018

Category Number of 
Shareholders 

Number of 
Shares 

% of total 
Share Capital 

Promoter and Promoter Group 22 37,45,700 63.14 

Individual 1548 21,86,900 36.86 

TOTAL 1570 59,32,600 100.00 

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

The Company’s Equity share has been admitted into Central Depository Services (India) Limited to
offer demat option to our shareholders. The shareholders can now avail the depository services with
any of the Depository Participants registered with CDSL which are spread over the length and breadth
of the country.

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT:

i. Pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, certificates on half-yearly basis, have been issued by a Company Secretary-in-
Practice for due compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company.

ii. A Practicing Company Secretary carries out the reconciliation of Share Capital of the Company for
every Quarter to reconcile the total capital admitted with Central Depository Services (India)
Limited(‘ Depositories’) and the total issued and listed capital of the Company. The Audit confirms
that the total issued /paid up Capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of
shares in physical form and the total number of shares in dematerialized form.
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Plant locations:

A. Meherpur-Unit I & Unit II, Silchar – 788015, Assam
Ph : (03842) 224822 / 224996
Fax : (03842) 241539

B. Balajan, Dhubri – 783331, Assam
Ph : (03662) 297180
Fax : (03662) 297180

Address for Correspondence:
Registered Office: Meherpur, Silchar, Assam – 788 015
Phone: (03842) 224822 / 224996, Fax: (03842) 241539
Email: ufm.investorgrievances@gmail.com
Website: www.ufmindl.weebly.com

Place:  Silchar
Date: 15th June, 2018

Mahabir Prasad Jain Avishek Jain
Managing Director Director and CFO
DIN: 00498001 DIN: 01383018
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Compliance with Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

As provided under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 it is hereby declared that all Board members and senior management
personnel of the Company have affirmed the compliance of the Code of Conduct for the year ended 31st
March, 2018.

Place: Silchar Mahabir Prasad Jain
Dated: 15th June, 2018 Managing Director
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CERTIFICATE BY MANAGING DIRECTOR / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

To,
The Board of Directors
UFM Industries Limited

We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of
UFM Industries Limited (‘the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

A. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Financial year
ended 31st March, 2018 and based on our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

(2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations;

B. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the
year are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting.
We have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting. Deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of
which we are aware, have been disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee and steps have
been taken to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and
Audit Committee:

(1) significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(2) significant changes, if any, in accounting policies made during the year and that the same
has been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(3) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein,
if any, of the management or any employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal
control system over financial reporting.

Place:  Silchar
Date: 15th June, 2018

Mahabir Prasad Jain Avishek Jain
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance

To
The Members of
UFM Industries Limited
Meherpur, Silchar,
Assam – 788 015

We have examined the compliance of conditions of the Corporate Governance by UFM Industries
Limited for the year ended on 31st March, 2018, as stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the
above mentioned Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For P. A. AGARWAL & CO.
Firm Registration No. 327316E

Chartered Accountants

CA. Pulkit Agarwal
Place : Silchar Partner
Date : 15th June, 2018  Membership No. 069321
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members
UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of UFM INDUSTRIES
LIMITED(“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2018, the Statement of Profit
& Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statementand the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind As financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in the equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
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so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India:
i) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018,
ii) In the case of the Statement of Profit & Loss, of the profit/loss including other comprehensiveincome,

for the year ended on that date,
iii) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date, and
iv) In the case of the Statement of Changes in Equity, the changes in equity for the yearended on that

date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the Annexure-A,a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that :
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books;
(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including the Statement of Other

ComprehensiveIncome, and the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, the directors are not disqualified as on 31 March
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
‘Annexure-B’.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial

position in its financial statement.
ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

For P. A. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N. : 327316E

CA.Pulkit Agarwal
Partner Place : Silchar
M. No. : 069321 Date : 15.06.2018
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‘ANNEXURE – A’ REFERRED TO IN OUR AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF
UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITEDON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH’2018.

i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, includingquantitative
details and situation, of its fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year. We are
informed that no material discrepancies were noticed by the management on such verification.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds
ofimmovable properties included in property, plant and equipment/ fixed assets are held in
the nameof the Company.

ii) (a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals.
(b) As explained to us, therewas no material discrepancies noticed on physical verification of

inventories ascompared to the books/records.

iii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any loan
or advance to any of any companies; firms or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013:

(a) In view of the above clause (iii), sub-clause (a) is not applicable.

(b) In view of the above clause (iii), sub-clause (b) is not applicable.

(c) In view of the above clause (iii), sub-clause (c) is not applicable.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
loans, investments, guarantees, and securities, wherever applicable.

v) The Company has not accepted deposits from the members during the year and hence the clause
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act’2013 and the rules framed thereunder are not applicableon
the Company.

vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for
the products of the Company.

vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the
company examined by us, the company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service
Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities in India

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of providentfund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax,cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding,
at the year end, for a period of more than six months fromthe date they became payable.

(c) There were no dues of Income Tax or service tax or duty of customs or value added tax or entry tax
which has not been deposited as on March, 2018 on account of any dispute.

viii) According to the records of the Company, it has not defaulted in repayment of its dues to any
financial institution, bank or debenture holders during the year.
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ix) On the basis of review of utilization of funds pertaining to term loans on overall basis and related
information as made available to us, the term loan taken by the Company have been applied for
the purposes for which they are obtained.

x) On the basis of our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Companyor on the Company by its officers or employees, has been noticed or reported
during the year.

xi) On the basis of our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid/provided themanagerial remuneration in accordance with therequisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013.

xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards, wherever applicable.

xiv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

xvi) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

For P. A. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N. : 327316E

CA.Pulkit Agarwal
Partner Place : Silchar
M. No. : 069321 Date : 15.06.2018
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‘ANNEXURE – B’ REFERRED TO IN OUR AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF
UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITEDON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH’2018

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act’2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of UFM Industries Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls :

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
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accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management, override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For P. A. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N. : 327316E

CA.Pulkit Agarwal
Partner Place : Silchar
M. No. : 069321 Date : 15.06.2018
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UFM Industries Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018
(Rs. In Lacs)

I ASSETS
(1) Non - Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 3                 228.16                 244.44                 226.84 
Capital work-in-progress 4                  48.61                    0.50                       -   
Investment Property 5                  78.32                  79.84                  81.37 
Financial Assets

(i) Investments 6                 751.80                 746.18                 332.64 
(ii) Trade receivables                       -                         -                         -   
(iii) Loans 6                  20.33                  20.33                  20.33 
(iv) Others                       -                         -                    27.00 

Other Non-Current Assets 7                    0.30                    0.05                    0.10 

(2) Current Assets
Inventories 8                 622.02                 511.63                 472.33 
Financial Assets
     (i) Investments 6                       -                         -                         -   
     (ii) Trade Receivables 9                 207.05                 191.06                 188.76 
     (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10                  74.86                 230.65                  72.96 
     (iv) Other Bank balances                       -                         -                         -   
     (v) Loans 6                       -                         -                         -   
     (vi) Others 6                    5.58                  14.86                  14.51 
Current Tax Assets (Net)                  65.99                  62.82                  35.57 
Other Current Assets 7                 259.98                 143.01                 106.47 

Total Assets             2,362.99             2,245.38             1,578.88 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity

Equity Share capital 11                 593.26                 593.26                 593.26 
Other Equity 12                 969.09                 897.78                 801.94 

(2) Liabilities
(a) Non-current liabilities

Financial Liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 13                    1.41                  16.92                    9.08 
     (ii) Trade Payables                       -                         -                         -   
     (iii) Other financial liabilities 16                       -                         -                         -   
Other non current liabilities 17                  20.06                  20.42                  20.79 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 18                  64.61                  76.93                  56.52 

(b) Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 14                 534.92                 608.29                  67.92 
     (ii) Trade Payables 15                 166.29                  20.61                  19.88 
     (iii) Other financial liabilities 16                  10.78                    8.75                    8.04 
Other current liabilities 17                    2.56                    2.31                    1.45 
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)                       -                      0.10                       -   

Total Equity and Liabilities             2,362.99             2,245.38             1,578.88 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For P.A.Agarwal & Co. For & on behalf the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 327316E

Mahabir Prasad Jain Tara Rani Jain
Managing Director Director
DIN : 00498001 DIN : 00545789

CA. Pulkit Agarwal
Partner
M. No. 069321 Avishek Jain Jyoti Jain

Director & CFO Company Secretary
Place : Silchar DIN : 01383018
Date  : 15.06.2018

  As at 
31 March 2018 

  As at 
1 April 2016 

  As at 
31 March 2017 

Particulars Note 
No.
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UFM Industries Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Rs. In Lacs)

 Note 
No. 

 Figures for the 
year ended 

March 31 2018 

 Figures for the 
year ended 

March 31 2017 

I INCOME
Revenue From Operations 19               6,814.84              6,681.93 
Other Income 20 34.52                  96.45                  
Total Income (I) 6,849.36             6,778.37             

II EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 21 6,055.48              5,984.43             
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-Trade and work in
progress

22 (6.57)                  33.05                  

Employee Benefits Expense 23 139.50                 113.11                
Finance Costs 24 55.74                  37.45                  
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 27.44                  25.44                  
Other Expenses 26 498.27                 450.32                
Total Expenses (II) 6,769.86             6,643.80             

III Profit before exceptional items and tax (I-II) 79.50                  134.58                

IV Exceptional Items 27 0.30                    -                     

V Profit / (Loss) before tax (III-IV) 79.80                  134.58                
VI Tax Expense:

(1) Current Year Taxes 18 19.04                  18.33                  
(2) Previous Year Taxes 18 1.77                    -                     
(3) Deferred Tax 18 (12.32)                                   20.41 

VII Profit / (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (V-VI) 71.31                  95.84                  

VIII Profit/(loss) from Discontinued Operations -                      -                      
IX Tax expense of Discontinued Operations -                      -                      
X Profit/(loss) from Discontinued Operations (after tax) (VIII-IX) -                      -                      

XI Profit / (Loss) for the period (VII + X) 71.31                  95.84                  

XII Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -                      -                     
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss

-                      -                     

-                      -                      
XIII Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XI + XII) [Comprising

Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the period]
71.31                  95.84                  

XIV Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation) :
(1) Basic (In Rs.) 28 1.20                    1.62                    
(2) Diluted (In Rs.) 28 1.20                    1.62                    
(3) Nominal Value (In Rs.) 10.00                  10.00                  
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For P.A.Agarwal & Co. For & on behalf the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 327316E

Mahabir Prasad Jain Tara Rani Jain
Managing Director Director
DIN : 00498001 DIN : 00545789

CA. Pulkit Agarwal
Partner
M. No. 069321 Avishek Jain Jyoti Jain

Director & CFO Company 
Place : Silchar DIN : 01383018
Date  : 15.06.2018
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UFM Industries Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

(a) Equity Share Capital :
(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars No. of Shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
At 1 April 2016        5,932,600          593.26 
Add : Issue of share capital (Note 11) -                                       -   
At 31 March 2017        5,932,600          593.26 
Add : Issue of share capital (Note 11) -                                  -   
At 31 March 2018        5,932,600          593.26 

(b) Other Equity :

For the year ended 31 March 2018:
(Rs. In Lacs)

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

(Note 12) (Note 12) (Note 12) (Note 12)
As at 1 April 2017 1.21           162.50            78.92            655.16             897.78         
Profit for the period -             -                 -               71.31               71.31           
Other comprehensive income -             -                 -               -                  -               
At 31 March 2018 1.21           162.50            78.92           726.47            969.09         

For the year ended 31 March 2017:
(Rs. In Lacs)

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings 

(Note 12) (Note 12) (Note 12) (Note 12)
As at 1 April 2016 1.21           162.50            78.92            559.32             801.94         
Profit for the period -             -                 -               95.84               95.84           
Other comprehensive income -             -                 -               -                  -               
At 31 March 2017 1.21           162.50            78.92           655.16            897.78         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For P.A.Agarwal & Co. For & on behalf the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 327316E

Mahabir Prasad Jain Tara Rani Jain
Managing Director Director
DIN : 00498001 DIN : 00545789

CA. Pulkit Agarwal
Partner
M. No. 069321 Avishek Jain Jyoti Jain

Director & CFO Company Secretary
Place : Silchar DIN : 01383018
Date  : 15.06.2018

Reserve & Surplus Total

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Reserve & Surplus
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UFM Industries Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars
Figures for the 

year ended March 
31 2018

Figures for the 
year ended March 

31 2017
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities

1 Profit Before Tax 79.80                   134.58                  

2 Adjustments for :
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant �and equipment 27.44                   25.44                    
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipments (net) (0.30)                   -                       
Loss/(Profit) on Impairment of Investments (net) 4.25                     -                       
Dividend Income (0.16)                   (0.13)                    
Interest Income (1.27)                   (1.45)                    
Interest Expenses 55.74                   37.45                    

Adjustments for Other Non Current Assets (0.25)                   0.05                      
Adjustments for Other Non Current Liabilities 0.00                     0.00                      

3 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (1+2) 165.26                195.94                 

4 Change in Working Capital: 
(Excluding Cash & Bank Balances)
Inventories (110.39)                (39.31)                   
Financial Assets

Trade Receivables (15.99)                 (2.29)                    
Others 9.28                     (0.35)                    

Current Tax Assets (3.17)                   (27.25)                   
Other Current Assets (116.97)                (36.54)                   
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings (73.36)                 540.37                  
Trade Payables 145.68                 0.73                      
Other Current Financial Liabilities 2.03                     0.71                      

Other Current Liabilities 0.25                     0.86                      
Current Tax Liabilities (0.10)                   0.10                      

Change in Working Capital (162.74)              437.03                 

5 Cash Generated From Operations (3+4) 2.52                    632.96                 

6 Less : Taxes Paid for Current Year (19.04)                 (18.33)                   
Less : Taxes Paid for Previous Year (1.77)                   -                       

7 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (5-6) (18.30)                614.64                 

B  Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment/Transfer of Assets 0.60                     -                       
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (10.29)                 (41.89)                   
Purchase of financial instruments (4.87)                   (386.54)                 
Interest received (Finance Income) 1.27                     1.45                      
Dividend Income 0.16                     0.13                      
Investment in Partnership Firm (5.00)                   -                       
Expenditure on Construction Work in Progress (48.11)                 (0.50)                    
Net Cash Generated/(Used) in Investing Activities: (66.25)                (427.34)               

C Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowings (Including finance lease) -                      15.88                    
Repayments of Long-Term Borrowings (Including finance lease) (15.51)                 (8.04)                    
Interest paid (55.74)                 (37.45)                   
Net Cash Generated/(Used) from Financing Activities: (71.26)                (29.61)                 

D Net Change in Cash & cash equivalents (155.80)              157.69                 
(A+B+C)

E - 1 Cash & cash equivalents as at end of the year 74.86                   230.65                  
E - 2 Cash & cash equivalents as at the beginning of year 230.65                 72.96                    

NET CHANGE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (E 1-2) (155.80)              157.69                 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For P.A.Agarwal & Co. For & on behalf the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 327316E

Mahabir Prasad Jain Tara Rani Jain
Managing Director Director

DIN : 00498001 DIN : 00545789
CA. Pulkit Agarwal

Partner
M. No. 069321

Avishek Jain Jyoti Jain
Place : Silchar Director & CFO
Date  : 15.06.2018 DIN : 01383018

Company Secretary
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

1. Corporate Information:

UFM Industries Limited (the Company) is a UFM Group Company. The Company was incorporated in
1986 by conversion of the then partnership firm M/s Union Flour Mills and has been in operations since
then. The Company is listed in India on Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company is a Flour Mill operating
entity. The Company hasbeen a major player amongst flour mills in the state of Assam and at present
it operates in the district of Silchar and Dhubri. The registered office of the Company is located at
Meherpur, Silchar, Assam – 788015. The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the Directors on June 15, 2018.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).
These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 are the first Company has prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. Refer to Note 43 for information on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

2.2 Current/Non Current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non- current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

 Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities and advance against current tax are classified as non-current assets
and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

UFM Industries Limited
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a. Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

(i) Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency on the date of the
transaction.

(ii) Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are
carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.

(iii) Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, or on reporting such monetary
items of Company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or
reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which
they arise.

b. Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Amounts disclosed are net of returns, trade discounts, rebates, value added taxes.

The recognition criteria described below must be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of Goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized upon passage of title to the customers which coincides
with their delivery and is measured at fair value of consideration received/receivable, net of returns
and allowances, discounts, volume rebates and cash discounts. The Company collects Central Sales
Taxes (CST) / Value Added Taxes (VAT) / Goods & Services Tax (GST) on behalf of the government and,
therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from
revenue.

Interest

Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
rate applicable.

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established by the balance sheet date.

c. Taxes

Tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date in the standalone financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at time
of transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

 When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

 When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity.

d. Property, Plant and Equipment

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), Leasehold land and buildings (property), other than investment
property, were carried in the balance sheet on the basis of cost less accumulated depreciation. The
Company has elected to regard the carrying amount under previous GAAP of an item of property, plant
and equipment as the deemed cost.

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost
is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in
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the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on straight line basis using the rates arrived at based on the
useful lives estimated by the management.

The management has accepted the useful lives of the Property, Plant and Equipmentand has used the
rates for providing depreciation on its fixed assets as indicated in Schedule II. The management believe
that the above assessment truly represents the useful life of assets in the absence of any evidence to
the contrary.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

e. Investment properties

Since there is no change in the functional currency, the Company has elected to continue with the
carrying value for all of its investment property as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial statements as
deemed cost at the transition date, viz., April 1, 2016. Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost.

f. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful economic life. If the persuasive evidence exists to the affect that useful life of an intangible asset
exceeds ten years, the Company amortizes the intangible asset over the best estimate of its useful life.
Such intangible assets are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Allother intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

g. Non-current assets held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through its sale rather than through continuing use. Such non-current assets classified as
held sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sale. Any
expected loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and
the asset or disposal Company is available for immediate sale in its present condition and the assets
must have actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value.
Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to plan
to sale these assets will be made. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as
held for sale. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separatelyas current items
in the balance sheet.

h. Expenditure during Construction Period

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity are capitalized. Other expenditure incurred during
the construction period which are not related to the construction activity nor are incidental thereto, are
charged to the statement of profit and loss.
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i. Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, theCompany
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account,
if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are
prepared separately for each of the Company cash-generating units to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the
fifth year.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

j. Investment in Subsidiaries

The investment in subsidiary is carried at cost as per Ind AS 27. Investment accounted for at cost is
accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale andInvestment
carried at cost is tested for impairment as per Ind AS 36 . An investor, regardless of the nature of its
involvement with an entity (the investee), shall determine whether it is a parentby assessing whether
it controls the investee. An investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee. Thus, an investor controls an investee if and only if the investor has all the
following:

(a) power over the investee;

(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and

(c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns

On disposal of investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is
charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

k. Leases

For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2016, the Company has determined whether the
arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

Where the Company is a lessee

Finance Lease, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental
to the ownership of the leased items, are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of
fair value of the leased item and the present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
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apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct
costs of lease are capitalized.

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset except if the
escalation in lease is within general inflation rate and consumer price index. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of the term of hire, the
capitalized asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of
the asset.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

l. Inventories

Basis of valuation:

Inventories other than scrap materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, if any.The
comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Method of Valuation:

 Cost of raw materials are determined by using FIFO method and comprises all costs of purchase,
duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

 Cost of traded goods are determined by using FIFO method and comprises all costs of purchase,
duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

 Cost of finished goods are determined by using Weighted Average Cost method and comprises all
costs of purchase of raw materials and duties & taxes thereto (other than those subsequently
recoverable from tax authorities), direct overheads and all other costs incurred in converting the
raw materials into finished products.

 Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

m. Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These
estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

n. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will beconfirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

o. Dividend Distributions

The Company recognizes a liability to make payment of dividend to owners of equity when the distribution
is authorized and is no longer at the discretion of the Group and is declared by the shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.
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p. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i)   In the principal market for asset or liability, or

(ii)  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset orliability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participantswould
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for whichsufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, theCompany
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

q. Employee Benefits

1. Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

2. Other long-term employee benefit obligations

a. Gratuity

The Employee’s Group Gratuity Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Life Insurance
Corporation of India (LIC). The liabilities with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method on the balance sheet date, based upon which the Company
contributes to the LIC Group Gratuity Scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the said scheme. Any liability arising on account of gratuity payable, is borne by LIC.
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b. Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the
related services. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the
extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

c. Compensated Absences/Leave Encashment

Accumulated leaves which is expected to be utilized within next 12 months is treated as short term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement and discharge at the year end.

d. Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-
settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
made using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves
in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that willultimately vest. The statement of profit and
loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the
grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Company best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/
or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the
expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the sharebased payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where
an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of
the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

r. Exceptional Items

Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately disclosedto
enable a full understanding of the Company financial performance.
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s. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events
such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation
of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity shares.

t. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

 Those to be measured subsequently at fairvalue (either through other comprehensiveincome, or
through profit or loss)

 Those measured at amortized cost.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI),

 Debt instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),

 Debt instruments at amortized cost,

 Equity instruments.

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. Business Model Test : The objective is to hold the debt instrument to collect the contractual cash
flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realise its fair value
changes).

b. Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the Debt instrument give rise on specific
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

This category is most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets
aresubsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not
consider the expected credit losses. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies
to trade and other receivables.
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Debt instruments at fair value through OCI

A Debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if following criteria
are met:

a. Business Model Test: The objective of financial instrument is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and for selling financial assets.

b. Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

Financial Asset included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
However, the Group recognized the interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported
as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial instruments. Any financial instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt instrument
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL and is not a part of a hedging relationship is recognized in
profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains or losses in the
period in which it arises. Interest income from these Debt instruments is included in other income.

Equity investments of other entities

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may
make an irrevocable election to present in profit & loss account all subsequent changes in the fair value.
The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTPL, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Profit & Loss Account. Equity instruments included
within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or,where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e removed from the Company statement of financial position)
when:

 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass
through” arrangement and either;

a. The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets or

b. The Company has retained the contractual right to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewardsof the ownership of the financial assets. In such cases, the
financial asset is derecognised. Wherethe entity has not transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the ownership ofthe financial assets, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks andrewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company hasnot retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, theasset is
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continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial asset and credit risk exposure :

 Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

 Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI);

The Company follows “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

 Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;

 All lease receivables resulting from the transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17.

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, itrecognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected
life of trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Companydetermines
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12- months ECL.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair valuethrough profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable transactioncosts. The Company
financial liabilities besides other may include loans and borrowings including trade payables,trade
deposits, retention money and liability towards services, sales incentive, other payablesand derivative
financial instruments.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Trade Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 180 days of
recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using EIR method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for tradingand
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss aredesignated
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. Forliabilities
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designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized
in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, theCompany may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value
through profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets:

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company senior management determines change in the business model
as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company operations. Such
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to itsoperations. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectivelyfrom the reclassification date
which is the first dayof the immediately next reporting period followingthe change in business model.
The Company doesnot restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or
losses) or interest.

u. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

v. Segment Reporting Policies

As the Company business activity primarily falls within a single business and geographical segment
and the Board of Directors monitors the operating results of itsbusiness units not separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation andperformance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the
standalone financial statements, thus there are no additional disclosures to be provided under Ind AS
108 – “Segment Reporting”. The management considers that the various goods and services provided
by the Company constitutes single business segment, since the risk and rewards from these services
are not different from one another. The Company operating businesses are organized and managed
separately according to the nature of products and services provided, with each segment representing
a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The analysis of
geographical segments is based on geographical location of the customers.

w. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for theeffects
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the
Group are segregated. Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow comprise cash at bank, cash/ cheques
in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

2.3 Recent Accounting Developments

(a) Standards issued but not yet effective:

IND AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued theCompanies (Indian Accounting Standards)
(Amendments)Rules, 2017, notifying Ind AS 115, ‘Revenue from Contracts withCustomers’. The Standard
is applicable to the Company with effectfrom 1st April, 2018.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accountingfor revenue arising from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 will supersede
the current revenue recognition standard Ind AS18 Revenue, Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts when it
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becomes effective. The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity shouldrecognise revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or

services to customers in an amount that reflects the considerationto which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for thosegoods or services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

• Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

• Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

• Step 3: Determine the transaction price

• Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

• Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies aperformance obligation

Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control’ of the goodsor services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer. The Company has completed itsevaluation of the possible impact of Ind AS 115 and will
adopt the standard from 1st April, 2018.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

• Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each
prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

• Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of
initial application (Cumulative catch - up approach)

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018.

The Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2018 by using the cumulative catch-up transition
method and accordingly comparatives for the year ending or ended March 31, 2018 will not be
retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 is expected to be insignificant.

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration:

On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has
received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The amendment will come into force from April 1, 2018. The Company has evaluated the effect of this
on the financial statements and the impact is not material.



UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED 69



UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED 70

N
o
te

s 
:

1
.

T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y 

h
a
s 

re
vi

e
w

e
d
 c

a
rr

yi
n
g
 c

o
st

 o
f 

it
s 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y,
 P

la
n
ts

 &
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 o

f 
th

e
 v

ie
w

 t
h
a
t 

in
 t

h
e

cu
rr

e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
ci

a
l 
ye

a
r,
 I
m

p
a
ir

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
it
s 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y,
 P

la
n
ts

 &
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
ts

 is
 n

o
t 

co
n
si

d
e
re

d
 n

e
ce

ss
a
ry

 a
s 

a
ll 

th
e
 a

ss
e
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 g

o
o
d

co
n
d
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
lis

a
b
le

 v
a
lu

e
 is

 m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 c

a
rr

yi
n
g
 c

o
st

.

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T
 C

A
S

H
 G

E
N

E
R

A
T
IN

G
 U

N
IT

S

T
h
e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y 

h
a
s 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 it

s 
e
n
ti
re

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

a
s 

o
n
e
 C

G
U

.

Fo
llo

w
in

g
 k

e
y 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti
o
n
s 

w
e
re

 c
o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 w

h
ile

 p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 I

m
p
a
ir

m
e
n
t 
te

st
in

g
:

L
o
n

g
 t

e
rm

 s
u

st
a
in

a
b

le
 g

ro
w

th
 r

a
te

s 
in

 c
a
sh

 f
lo

w
s

5
%

W
e
ig

h
te

d
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 C

o
st

 o
f 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
%

 (
W

A
C

C
) 

b
e
fo

re
 t

a
x
 (

D
is

co
u

n
t 

ra
te

)
1
5

%

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n
s 

co
ve

r 
a
 p

e
ri

o
d
 o

f f
iv

e
 y

e
a
rs

, 
a
s 

th
e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y 

b
e
lie

ve
s 

th
is

 t
o
 b

e
 t
h
e
 m

o
st

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
im

e
sc

a
le

 o
ve

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t
o
 r

e
vi

e
w

a
n
d
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

a
n
n
u
a
l p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

s 
b
e
fo

re
 a

p
p
ly

in
g
 a

 f
ix

e
d
 t
e
rm

in
a
l v

a
lu

e
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l y

e
a
r 

ca
sh

 f
lo

w
s.

 T
h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 r

a
te

s 
u
se

d
to

 e
st

im
a
te

 f
u
tu

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 a
re

 b
a
se

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
se

rv
a
ti
ve

 e
st

im
a
te

s 
fr

o
m

 p
a
st

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

. 
M

a
rg

in
s 

a
re

 b
a
se

d
 o

n
 F

Y
 2

0
1
7
-1

8
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

.T
h
e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y 

h
a
s 

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 s

e
n
si

ti
vi

ty
 a

n
a
ly

si
s 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 b

a
se

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti
o
n
s 

a
n
d
 h

a
ve

 c
o
n
cl

u
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

n
o
 r

e
a
so

n
a
b
le

ch
a
n
g
e
s 

in
 k

e
y 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti
o
n
s 

w
o
u
ld

 c
a
u
se

 t
h
e
 r

e
co

ve
ra

b
le

 a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 C

G
U

 t
o
 b

e
 l
e
ss

 t
h
a
n
 t

h
e
 c

a
rr

yi
n
g
 v

a
lu

e
.

2
.

O
n
 t

ra
n
si

ti
o
n
 t

o
 I

n
d
 A

S
, 

th
e
 c

a
rr

yi
n
g
 v

a
lu

e
s 

o
f 

a
ll 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y,
 p

la
n
t 

a
n
d
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 p

re
vi

o
u
s 

G
A
A
P
 h

a
ve

 b
e
e
n

co
n
si

d
e
re

d
 t
o
 b

e
 t
h
e
 d

e
e
m

e
d
 c

o
st

 u
n
d
e
r 

In
d
 A

S
.



UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED 71



UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED 72



UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED 73



UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED 74



UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED 75



UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED 76



UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED 77



UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED 78



UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED 79

15. Trade payables (at amortised cost)
(Rs in Lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Sundry Creditors:
Dues of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises* -                     -                      -                     
Dues to Related Parties -                     -                      -                     
Dues to others 166.29               20.61                   19.88                  

TOTAL 166.29               20.61                   19.88                 

* The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006” has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information collected by the Management.

UFM Industries Limited

14.   Short Term Borrowings (at amortised cost)
(Rs in Lacs)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
CURRENT BORROWINGS

SECURED LOANS

Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks:

Cash Credit * 534.92                 608.29                67.92                  

From Others:
-                       -                     -                     

Total Secued Loans 534.92                 608.29               67.92                 

UNSECURED LOANS

Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks -                       -                     -                     

From Others: -                       -                     -                     

Total Unsecued Loans -                       -                     -                     

TOATL CURRENT BORROWINGS 534.92                 608.29               67.92                 

* Security Details of Cash Credit Limit from United Bank of India :

(ii) Exclusive 1st Charge on Company's immovable fixed assets including Equitable mortgage of Land,

measuring 18 Bigha 5 Katha 3 Chatak with shed, structures, buildings situated at Meherpur, Silchar -

788015, Dag No 1180, 1188, 1189, 1191, 1194 and 1198, R. S. Patta No. 411, 407/407, Mouza :

Ambicapur Part X, District - Cachar, owned by the company.
(iii) Exclusive 1st Charge on movable fixed assets of the company.
(iv) Personal Guarantee of the Directors namely Mahabir Prasad Jain, Avishek Jain and Tara Rani Jain.

Particulars
Short Term

(i) Hypothecation of present and future stock of raw materials, stock in trade, finished goods, stock in
transit, book debts and other current assets of the company, present and future.
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UFM Industries Limited

20. Other Income
(Rs in Lacs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Interest on: 
Bank Deposits -                        -                         
Security Deposit 1.27                      1.45                       

1.27                      1.45                       
Dividend from:

- Related parties -                        -                         

- Other companies 0.16                      0.13                       

Fair value gain on financial assets/financial liabilities 
at fair value through profit or loss

4.87                      61.54                      

Renting of Godown 28.22                    33.33                      

34.52                    96.45                     

21. Cost of Materials consumed
(Rs in Lacs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Opening Stock                   427.21                     367.66 
Add: Purchases*                 6,137.74                  6,043.97 

                6,564.95                  6,411.63 

Less: Closing Stock                   509.47                     427.21 

Raw materials consumed                6,055.48                 5,984.43 

Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Wheat** 6,054.73                5,983.72                 
Flour Improver 0.75                      0.71                       

Total 6,055.48               5,984.43                

Particulars relating to consumption of raw material are as follows :

Particulars

*Purchase (Net of Discounts) includes various direct/incidental expenses like transportation, labour,
cess, brokerage, demurrage, etc

**Item wise Purchases, Opening Stock and Closing Stock of material consumed are shown in Note
21.1 for FY 17-18 and Note 21.2 for FY 16-17.

Particulars
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UFM Industries Limited

23. Employee Benefits Expense
(Rs in Lacs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Salaries and wages 125.07             98.09               
Contribution to provident and other funds 11.26               8.35                 
Staff welfare expenses 3.17                 6.66                 

            139.50             113.11 

Particulars

24. Finance Costs
(Rs in Lacs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Interest expense:
Interest on debts and borrowings

Cash Credit 53.87                                   28.47                              
Bonds/ Debentures -                                       -                                 
Term loans from Banks 1.81                                     2.60                                
Others * 0.06                                     0.00                                

Sub total 55.74                                    31.07                              
Other Borrowing Costs -                                       6.38                                

55.74                                    37.45                              

Particulars

25. Depreciation and amortization expense
(Rs in Lacs)

Note No. Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment

3                26.28                24.29 

Depreciation of Investment Property 5                  1.52                  1.52 
               27.80                25.81 

Less : Government Grant recognised as income �(Ind AS 20)17                  0.36                  0.36 
               27.44                25.44 

Amortisation of intangible assets                     -                       -   

              27.44                25.44 

Particulars
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UFM Industries Limited
26. Other Expenses

(Rs in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Consumption:
a)  Stores, Spares and Consumables 49.05                  28.42               
b)  Packaging Materials 66.98                  42.41               
Power & Fuel 248.49                227.08             
Repairs and Maintenance
i)    Plant & Machinery 1.28                   11.16               
ii)   Buildings 5.63                   5.72                 
iii)  Others 11.34                  12.10               
Freight, Transportation Charges and 
Demurrage

-                     22.32               

Impairment of Investments (Net) 4.25                   -                   
Office Administration, Selling and Other Expenses (Note-26.1) 111.25                101.12             

     TOTAL         498.27               450.32             

(Rs in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Office Rent 2.64                   2.64                 
Insurance 8.33                   6.56                 
Rates & Taxes 2.12                   1.55                 
Donations -                     -                   
Payment to Auditors -                     -                   
a) Audit Fees 0.20                   0.18                 
b) Tax Audit Fees 0.05                   0.05                 
Travelling & Conveyance 8.06                   2.11                 
Telephone & Internet Expenses 1.29                   1.47                 
Printing & Stationery 1.33                   1.30                 
Share Listing & Registrar Fees 0.91                   2.88                 
Advertisement Expenses 1.28                   2.48                 
Bank Charges 1.36                   0.55                 
Handling Expenses 18.14                  11.60               
Motor Car Upkeep 0.65                   1.88                 
Truck Running Expenses 55.79                  55.79               
Miscellaneous Expenses 9.11                   10.08               
     TOTAL         111.25               101.12             

27. Exceptional items
(Rs in Lacs)

NOTE - 26.1: OFFICE,ADMINISTRATION,SELLING  AND 
OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars

Particulars

(Rs in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.30                  -                     

TOTAL 0.30                  -                     

Particulars
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UFM Industries Limited

Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2016 and March 31, 2017 and Profit or
loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

1. Government Grant in the form of capital subsidy was received in FY 2014-15 towards Godown
constructed in the FY 2013-14. In accordance with AS 12 the same was adjusted with carrying
value of Godown and accordingly depreciation was charged on reduced carrying value. However,
as required by Ind AS 20, government grant has been booked as Other Non Current Liabilities and
carrying value of Godown has been increased by the same amount. Government Grant is being
recognised as Income in the Profit & Loss Account over the remaining life of the said asset. Accord-
ingly, higher amount of depreciation has been charged on increased value of Godown which is set
off against the government grant recognised as above.

(Details in Note 17 & 25)

2. According to Ind AS 40 - “Investment Property”, Investment Property refers to properties (land or
building or both) held by the owner or lessee under finance lease, to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Accordingly, godowns held by the Company for rentals have been classified
as Investment Properties at the carrying value as on April 1, 2016 and accordingly depreciation
has been charged on the said carrying value as per Sch II of the Companies Act’2013.

(Details in Note 5)

3. As required by Ind AS 109, financial assets are required to be valued at fair value. Accordingly,
Investments have been revalued at its fair values as on April 1, 2016 , March 31, 2017 and March
31, 2018. Differences in the carrying value as per Ind GAAP and Ind AS have been recognised
through Profit & Loss Account under the head “Other Income” for the year ending March 31, 2017
and March 31, 2018. However, differences in the carrying value as per Ind GAAP and Ind AS as on
April 1, 2016 have been adjusted (Net of Deferred Tax) in the balance of Retained Earnings as on
April 1, 2016.Deferred Tax Liability as on April 1, 2016 has been increased to consider the tax
effect of the said revaluation. Deferred Tax Liability has been further increased/decreased to con-
sider the tax effect of revaluation of the said investments at fair value as on March 31, 2017 and
March 31, 2018.

(Details in Note 6, 18 & 20)

As per our report of even date attached.

For P. A. Agarwal & Co. For & on behalf the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 327316E

Mahabir Prasad Jain Tara Rani Jain
Managing Director Director
DIN : 00498001 DIN : 00545789

CA. Pulkit Agarwal
Partner
M. No. 069321 Avishek Jain Jyoti Jain

Director & CFO Company Secretary
Place : Silchar DIN : 01383018
Date  : 15.06.2018
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UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L15311AS1986PLC002539

Regd. Office: Meherpur, Silchar, Assam – 788 015
Tel: 03842 – 224822/224996, Fax: 03842 – 241539

Email: ufmindustries@rediffmail.com
Website: ufmindl.weebly.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

 
Folio No./ DP ID and Client ID:  
 
Name:  
 
 
Address: 

 
No. of Shares held : 

 
 

I/We hereby record my/our attendance at the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held on Friday, 28th September, 2018 at 2:00 P.M. at the registered office of the Company.

_______________________________ ______________________
Member’s/Proxy’s name in block letters Member’s/Proxy’s signature

Notes:

1. Registration will start at 01:00P.M. and close at 01:45 P.M. on the day of Annual General
Meeting.

2. The members are required to produce their duly signed Attendance Slips and get their
entry passes from the registration counter.

3. This Attendance Slip is valid only in case shares are held on the date of the Annual
General Meeting.
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UFM INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L15311AS1986PLC002539

Regd. Office: Meherpur, Silchar, Assam – 788 015
Tel: 03842 – 224822/224996, Fax: 03842 – 241539

Email: ufmindustries@rediffmail.com
Website: ufmindl.weebly.com

PROXY FORM NO. MGT -11
 [Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s):

Registered Address:

Email Id:

Folio No. / DP ID and Client ID:

I /We, being the member(s) of the Company and holding ___________ shares of the Company, hereby
appoint:-

1. Name: _______________________________________, Address: ___________________________

Email: ___________________, Signature: _____________________, or failing him/her

2. Name: _______________________________________, Address: ___________________________

Email: ___________________, Signature: _____________________, or failing him/her

3. Name: _____________________________________, Address: __________________________

Email: ____________________, Signature: ______________________

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 32nd Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, 28th September, 2018 at 02:00 P.M. at the
registered office of the Company and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicated below:

Signed this _______ day of __________________, 2018

Signature of the shareholder _________________________________________________

Signature of the proxy holder ________________________________________________
———————————————————————————————————————————————————
Notes:
1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of

the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
2. * It is optional to put ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the

‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all resolution, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as
he / she thinks appropriate.
Please complete all details including details of member(s) in the above box before submission.

Sl. 
No. 

RESOLUTIONS 
Optional* 

   Ordinary Business For Against 
1 Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial 

Year ended 31st March, 2018 and the Reports of Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon. 

  

2 Re-appointment of Mrs. Tara Rani Jain (DIN: 00545789) as a 
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.  

  

Special Business 

3 
Revision in remuneration of Mr. Mahabir Prasad Jain (DIN: 
00498001), Managing Director 
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